
 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the 

meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the public 
except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter during a 

public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them 

to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the 
ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable 

accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 1 of 1 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Agenda 

Tuesday, June 16, 2020 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

2. Approval of Agenda 

3. Invocation 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (KI) 

Zoning/Public Hearing 
5. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC & Lick Creek Holding's LLC to 

rezone 2.14 acres on Collis Road from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 030, District 3] (staff-P&D) 

6. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Lick Creek Holding's LLC to rezone 21.40 acres on Collis 

Road from AG-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 032001, District 3] (staff-P&D) 

7. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Mallard's Overlook, LLC to rezone 29.58 acres on Collis 

Road from AG-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 032, District 3] (staff-P&D) 

8. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC & Lick Creek Holding's LLC to 

rezone 3.5 acres on Collis Road from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 033, District 3] (staff-P&D) 

9. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC to rezone 0.63 acres/27,298 square 

feet on Doug Lane from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104B, Parcel 001, District 3] (staff-P&D) 

Regular Business Meeting 
10. Public Comments 

11. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - June 5, 2020 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - June 5, 2020 Executive Session (staff-CC) 

c. Approval of Minutes - June 5, 2020 Called Meeting (staff-CC) 

d. Authorization for Chairman to sign ACCG Group Health Benefits Program Health Promotion & 

Wellbeing Grant Application (staff-HR) 

Reports/Announcements 
12. County Manager Report 

13. County Attorney Report 

14. Commissioner Announcements 

Closing 
15. Adjournment 

1



File Attachments for Item:

 Welcome - Call to Order

2



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-5826 ◊ Fax: 706-923-2345 ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will conduct their 

regularly scheduled public hearing and board meeting on June 16th at 

6:30 pm.  In an effort to provide a safe environment and maintain the 

recommended six feet social distancing regarding the COVID-19 

Pandemic, we will follow specific and detailed guidelines in conducting 

the meeting.  Therefore, limited seating (chairs are 6 feet apart) will be 

available inside of the meeting room and reserved for those that have 

signed in to address the commission.  A few chairs will be located in the 

hallway for overflow.  Masks are encouraged, but voluntary and hand 

sanitizer will be available. 

 

The public hearing and regular meeting will be on broadcast on 

Facebook Live on the Putnam County page 

(https://www.facebook.com/putnamcountyga. 

 

The protocol will be as follows:  

1. Doors will open at 6:00 pm promptly and there will be separate 

sign-in sheets for the rezoning items (two sheets: one “for” and one 

“against”) and the regular meeting items located inside the meeting 

room.  Please sign in if you desire to speak for or against an 

agenda item. 

2. Those who cannot attend the meeting for any reason, including 

those with preexisting conditions, are encouraged to email their 

comments to lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us on or before June 

15th and they will be distributed to the board members.  

 

 

 

3

http://www.putnamcountyga.us/
https://www.facebook.com/putnamcountyga


File Attachments for Item:

5. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC & Lick Creek Holding's LLC to rezone 

2.14 acres on Collis Road from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 030, District 3] (staff-P&D)

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



The following 
documents 

(pages 34-168) 
 

Apply to 
agenda item #s 
5, 6, 7, 8, and 9 

33



5

6
7
8

9

34



Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC & Lick 
Creek Holding's LLC to rezone 2.14 acres on Collis Road from R-1 to RM-3. 

[Map 104, Parcel 030, District 3] (staff-P&D) 
 

Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Lick Creek Holding's LLC to 
rezone 21.40 acres on Collis Road from AG-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 
032001, District 3] (staff-P&D) 

 
Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Mallard's Overlook, LLC to rezone 

29.58 acres on Collis Road from AG-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 032, 
District 3] (staff-P&D) 
 

Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC & Lick 
Creek Holding's LLC to rezone 3.5 acres on Collis Road from R-1 to RM-3. 

[Map 104, Parcel 033, District 3] (staff-P&D) 
 
Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC to rezone 

0.63 acres/27,298 square feet on Doug Lane from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104B, 
Parcel 001, District 3] (staff-P&D) 

 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The applicants are seeking to rezone this parcel along with four adjacent parcels 
with a total of 57.07 acres to RM-3. If approved, the applicants would like to 

combine the five parcels in order to develop a waterfront community. The 
applicants are requesting that the parcels be rezoned R-M3 with no conditions on 

use. The applicants have provided proposals for either 124 Multi-Family Townhomes 
or a 175-room hotel, both of which will have a main entrance on Collis Road.  This 
would either add approximately 310 residents to the neighborhood or an increase in 

937 average weekday two-way volume. The applicants are proposing to develop 
this subdivision in accordance with the Putnam County Development Codes with 

either townhome and condominium units similar to Enclave at Waterfront and 
Cuscowilla Condominium and Townhome Units or a hotel facility. Water and sewer 
will be provided by Piedmont Water. According to the applicants, the proposed use 

will place emphasis on lakeshore protection, recreation use of Lake Oconee, and 
promote common open space for property owners or hotel occupants.  The 

applicants reference an August 28, 2017 Hunden Strategic Partner’s Putnam County 
Hotel & Conference Center Market, Demand and Financial Study, though the same 
is not attached to the application. 

  
The subject property is surrounded by both R-1 and AG-1 zoning, and it fronts one 

collector road (Collis Road) which will require operational improvements to safely 
accommodate the significant traffic volumes that will be generated from this 
development, if this rezoning is approved. 

  
Although the Future Land Use Comprehensive Plan is Agriculture/Forestry in this 

area, there are several similar developments within a five-mile radius of the 
proposed location. Recent development trends also indicate that single family and 

35



multifamily development will continue to occur in this area. However, staff finds the 
proposed rezoning will cause an excessive or burdensome use of public facilities 

and shall exceed the present or funded capabilities and will otherwise have an 
impact on the public health, safety, morality, or general welfare of Putnam County 

citizens. 
  
ROAD ENGINEERING COMMENTS: (completed by Larry Kaiser) 

  
Collis Road is a two-lane collector road with average pavement width of 

approximately 20 feet. Collis Road terminates at Wards Chapel Road, which is a 
major collector road. Adequate horizontal and vertical sight distance exists to the 
east and west of Wards Chapel Road for those vehicles exiting Collis Road.  The 

intersection radius at Collis Road & Wards Chapel is adequate to facilitate the 
existing traffic demands.  

  
Based on the traffic study submitted by the applicants, the proposed hotel 
development will increase daily traffic by 70% on Collis Road from the existing 

1,331 two-way trips to 2,261 trips per day. The 70% increase in single axle 2000 
pound pavement loads generated from passenger vehicles will induce accelerated 

pavement damage. The accelerated pavement damage associated with a 70% 
increase in single axle passenger vehicles is in itself not a true reflection of the 

impact to the roadway pavement.  This increase in passenger traffic volume does 
not provide the entire story. The most impactful damage and significant loss of 
pavement serviceability will be associated with the 18,000 and 36,000 single axle 

loadings generated by construction traffic (tractor trailers, concrete trucks), and 
waste disposal trucks and service trucks once the hotel is in operation. For 

“pavement damage comparisons”, a concrete truck results in approximately 4000 
times more damage to the pavement than a single axle passenger vehicle. Given 
the minimal asphalt thickness that currently exist on Collis Road, the county would 

expect that the pavement will begin to substantially deteriorate within a few 
months of construction commencing on this development. The form of distress will 

be pavement rutting (depressions in the wheel paths) and large areas of the 
roadway where asphalt will begin to disintegrate resulting in potholes. During the 
project construction period, estimated to be 15-24 months, the roadway will likely 

show areas of significant distress over 75% of the roadway and in some cases 
portions of the roadway will be impassable (without pavement maintenance being 

performed).  
   
It should be noted that the traffic impact study memo from the applicants’ engineer 

does not consider other types of traffic loadings once the hotel is in operation (as 
described in the aforementioned) nor does it account for traffic associated with 

conventions, events (as identified in the rezoning application) or other “hotel-
related” activities/services that often exist with a luxury hotel. The floor area for 
“events” was not identified in the owner’s application package. As such, it is 

estimated at an additional 200 trips per day.   
  

It is my opinion that the proposed development will adversely impact the safety 
and operation of Collis Road the length of the road from Wards Chapel Road to the 

36



proposed development.  The construction traffic associated with this development 
will have a detrimental short- and long-term impact to the serviceability of the 

roadway pavement of Collis Road, thereby result in harm to the safe operation of 
Collis Road. In addition, the increase in traffic volume generated upon build-out of 

this development will result in accelerated deterioration of the roadway pavement 
and the intersection radius at Wards Chapel and Collis Road.   
  

To offset the adverse impacts to the safe operation of Collis Road, roadway 
reclamation and resurfacing repair tasks should be undertaken on Collis Road, to 

include the following: 
  

✓ Pavement Reconstruction of Collis Road. This construction method 

will consist of reclamation of the existing asphalt pavement, 
compacting the reclaimed materials and resurfacing the roadway 

with an asphalt surface course of 2 inches of 12.5 mm asphaltic 
concrete and a binder course of 3 inches of 19 mm asphaltic 
concrete (total length of Collis Road impacted from the 

development is 3000 feet – from Wards Chapel to the proposed 
entrance). 

✓ Thermoplastic edge and centerline striping of Collis Road from 
Wards Chapel to proposed entrance. 

✓ Shoulder rehabilitation & traffic control of Collis Road from Wards 
Chapel to proposed entrance, to include the construction of a 5-foot 
shoulder (minimum 2:1 slope) and roadside ditch 

✓ Increasing the radii of the intersection of Wards Chapel at Collis 
Road to a minimum of 30 feet with the widened section to be 

constructed with 6 inches of graded aggregate base and 2.5 inches 
of 12.5 mm asphaltic concrete. 

 

On May 29, 2020, the Board of Commissioners (“Board”) entered into a 
development agreement with the applicants that obligates the Board to improve 

Collis Road from Wards Chapel to the proposed development entrance in 
accordance with the terms described by Mr. Kaiser in exchange for the applicants’ 
agreement to construction a hotel in accordance with site plans attached 

thereto.  As the hotel site plans are the same as the plans submitted for the 
proposed hotel development in the applicant’s rezoning application, Collis Road will 

be improved to address Mr. Kaiser’s concerns if the development is in accordance 
with the submitted hotel plans. 
 

Staff recommendation is for approval of the proposed rezoning, subject to 
the following conditions: 

 
1. To restrict the available uses of the property as follows: 

a. Hotel 

i. The hotel shall substantial conform to the submitted 
scaled conceptual plans and renderings submitted in 
support of the proposed rezoning application, to 

37



include the buildings, ingress and egress 
improvements, and other structures; 

ii. No more than ten percent (10%) of the total number 
of guest rooms may contain stoves, conventional 
ovens or full-size refrigerators (larger than 11.5 cubic 
feet).  No more than ten percent (10%) of the total 

number of guest rooms shall be rented or leased by 
the same person for continuous periods in excess of 

ten (10) days; 

iii. Buildings shall be constructed of brick and/or stacked 
stone on all sides.  The hotel building may utilize 
contrasting architectural metal panels or accents; 

iv. Not to exceed the proposed total of 175 room as 
stated in the application. Any increase beyond this 

total will require approval from the Board of 
Commissioner; 

  
2. The application of green infrastructure (bioswales/biorention, 

etc) in combination of water quality retention ponds, will require 

implementation to minimize the negative effects of 
imperviousness and stormwater runoff to the water quality of 

Lake Oconee. The Georgia Stormwater Manual will be applied to 
the project under review. The manual’s water quality template will 
be used to assess the various water quality BMP options.  

  
3. Provide at least one 3-inch caliper tree per 3 parking spaces. 

Trees shall be placed in tree islands within the footprint of the 
parking lot. Location of trees shall be determined by the county 
during the site development review (LDP phase). Provide two – 3-

inch caliper trees per 100 feet on the shoulder of all roadways 
within the development. Trees to be placed on both sides of all 

internal roads. Specific location of the trees adjacent to the 
internal roads to be determined by the county during the site 

development review process. These tree plantings shall not 
preclude the developer from installing additional vegetation as 
he/she deems appropriate. 

  
4. Provide a 25-foot-wide densely planted landscape buffer along the 

property line on Doug Lane and where the property abuts 
residential parcels on Collis Marina Road. The additional plantings 
shall provide a 75% buffer within 3 years of planting. Landscape 

plan and species to be approved during the development review 
phase. 

  
5. Emergency exit required on Collis Marina Road. Emergency exit 

shall not be paved. “Grass Crete” or similar product shall be used 

as the surface treatment for this access. A removable bollard (s) 

38



or similar barrier shall be used with only emergency services 
being provided entryway   

  
6. Preserve a 20’ non-buildable strip along the Collis Road frontage 

measured from edge of right-of-way.  The purpose of this 
condition is for future county acquisition as right-of-way. 

  

7. A minimum of 65 feet building setback from Lake Oconee will be 
required. This includes all structures and stormwater management 

facilities. Walkways/paths and boat docks are excluded from this 
setback requirement.   

  

8. Development shall have only one (1) vehicular access. Access 
shall be from Collis Road. 

  
9. Map 104, parcel 030, map 104 parcel 032, map 104 parcel 

032001, map 104, parcel 033 and map 104 B, parcel 001, must be 

combined and cannot be used or sold as a standalone parcel.    
 

10. This rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and 
recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 
 
 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 

 
Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for approval to 
rezone 21.40 acres on Collis Road from AG-1 to RM-3 [Map 104, Parcel 

032001, District 3] with the following conditions:  
1. To restrict the available uses of the property as follows: 

a. Hotel 

i. The hotel shall substantial conform to the submitted scaled 
conceptual plans and renderings submitted in support of the 
proposed rezoning application, to include the buildings, 

ingress and egress improvements, and other structures; 

ii. No more than ten percent (10%) of the total number of 
guest rooms may contain stoves, conventional ovens or full-
size refrigerators (larger than 11.5 cubic feet).  No more 

than ten percent (10%) of the total number of guest rooms 
shall be rented or leased by the same person for continuous 
periods in excess of ten (10) days; 

iii. Buildings shall be constructed of brick and/or stacked stone 
on all sides.  The hotel building may utilize contrasting 
architectural metal panels or accents; 

iv. Not to exceed the proposed total of 175 room as stated in 
the application. Any increase beyond this total will require 

approval from the Board of Commissioner; 

39



  
2. The application of green infrastructure (bioswales/biorention, etc) in 

combination of water quality retention ponds, will require implementation 
to minimize the negative effects of imperviousness and stormwater runoff 

to the water quality of Lake Oconee. The Georgia Stormwater Manual will 
be applied to the project under review. The manual’s water quality 
template will be used to assess the various water quality BMP options.  

  
3. Provide at least one 3-inch caliper tree per 3 parking spaces. Trees shall 

be placed in tree islands within the footprint of the parking lot. Location of 
trees shall be determined by the county during the site development 
review (LDP phase). Provide two – 3-inch caliper trees per 100 feet on the 

shoulder of all roadways within the development. Trees to be placed on 
both sides of all internal roads. Specific location of the trees adjacent to 

the internal roads to be determined by the county during the site 
development review process. These tree plantings shall not preclude the 
developer from installing additional vegetation as he/she deems 

appropriate. 
  

4. Provide a 25-foot-wide densely planted landscape buffer along the 
property line on Doug Lane and where the property abuts residential 

parcels on Collis Marina Road. The additional plantings shall provide a 
75% buffer within 3 years of planting. Landscape plan and species to be 
approved during the development review phase. 

  
5. Emergency exit required on Collis Marina Road. Emergency exit shall not 

be paved. “Grass Crete” or similar product shall be used as the surface 
treatment for this access. A removable bollard (s) or similar barrier shall 
be used with only emergency services being provided entryway   

  
6. Preserve a 20’ non-buildable strip along the Collis Road frontage 

measured from edge of right-of-way.  The purpose of this condition is for 
future county acquisition as right-of-way. 

  

7. A minimum of 65 feet building setback from Lake Oconee will be required. 
This includes all structures and stormwater management facilities. 

Walkways/paths and boat docks are excluded from this setback 
requirement.   

  

8. Development shall have only one (1) vehicular access. Access shall be 
from Collis Road. 

  
9. Map 104, parcel 030, map 104 parcel 032, map 104 parcel 032001, map 

104, parcel 033 and map 104 B, parcel 001, must be combined and 

cannot be used or sold as a standalone parcel.    
 

40



10.This rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation 
of the plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of the Putnam County Code 

of Ordinances.  
 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES: 
 

The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on 
Thursday June 4, 2020 at 6:30 p.m. in the Putnam County Administration Building, 

117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 
 
Present: Chairman James Marshall, Jr., Member Maurice Hill, Jr., Member 

Martha Farley 
Staff Present: Lisa Jackson, Courtney Andrews, Lynn Butterworth, Adam 

Nelson, Putnam County Attorney 
 
The following items 14-18 were heard together. 

 
14.Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC & Lick 

Creek Holding's LLC to rezone 2.14 acres on Collis Road from R-1 to RM-
3. [Map 104, Parcel 030, District 3]. *  

15.Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Lick Creek Holding's LLC to 
rezone 21.40 acres on Collis Road from AG-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 
032001, District 3]. * 

16.Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Mallard's Overlook, LLC to 
rezone 29.58 acres on Collis Road from AG-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 032, 

District 3]. * 
17.Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC & Lick 

Creek Holding's LLC to rezone 3.5 acres on Collis Road from R-1 to RM-

3. [Map 104, Parcel 033, District 3]. * 
18.Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC to rezone 

0.63 acres/27,298 sq. ft. on Doug Lane from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104B, Parcel 
001, District 3]. *  

Attorney Doug Dillard represented this request. He stated that Jeff Haymore and 

himself would be representing the applicants. He added that he would be discussing 
the important points that they think should be considered tonight. Attorney 

Dillard stated that he has given the board a book and advised them to look at Tab 
1. On Tab 1 there is an aerial that is also on Tab 2. He added that last December, 
the board recommended for approval. At that time, Members Pierson and Hill, 

asked about Collis Road widening. As the staff report notes, his clients and the 
county, had signed a development agreement which resolves that issue. Attorney 

Dillard stated that later in the presentation he will discuss the traffic study on Tab 
6&7. The issues of the traffic study were resolved by the development agreement. 
Attorney Dillard added that the properties are zoned agriculture and R-1. They 

submit to the board that these classifications are unconstitutional. Particular to AG, 
Tab 3 shows that the uses under AG are not compatible with the uses that are 

consistent in the area. You can have a slaughterhouse, meat processing plant, and 
the like of other agriculture uses that is certainly not something you would want to 

41



happen. If the property is not rezoned, those are the uses that this property is left 
with. Attorney Dillard stated that the uses are not reasonable, nor are they 

economical. He added that the conceptual plan and renderings are on Tab 4 and 
proposes 175 units. This will be a high-end hotel, Marriott, Hilton, Hyatt, etc. The 

resort will have a nautical decor and a laid-back environment where people can 
relax and enjoy the lake. The hotel will have two restaurants not unlike Reynolds 
Plantation. Attorney Dillard stated that they have major entities that are 

interested in developing the property with them and are major players in Atlanta 
and throughout the South East and United States. He added that the economic 

impact of this development is significant. In 2017, Putnam County approved and 
funded the hotel study and found that the hotel facilities were inadequate in 
Putnam County. On page 3 of the outline, it discusses annual tax sales, hotel motel 

tax, food and beverage, and the benefits to the county. Attorney Dillard stated 
that although they have submitted a hotel concept plan for 175 units, they also 

have an alternative use of a townhouse development that is on Tab 7. The board 
has seen this plan before. It will be 124 units, 6 buildings with 4 units each and 20 
buildings with 5 units each. He added that all the opponents have a more intense 

zoning than they have. Tab 2 shows the area around the subject property zoned to 
higher density or multi-use classification. The townhome concept proposes 124 

townhome units with a density of 2.18. The hotel concept proposes 175 units with a 
density just about 3 units per acre. By contrast, the Enclave Townhomes has 18 

units on 2.68 acres for a net density of 6.7 units per acre. Waterfront 
Condominiums has 72 units with a density of 8 units per acre. The proposed density 
is substantially less than properties similarly situated. Attorney Dillard stated that 

they submit that the project would be a third of the development already in place, 
near this property. There will be no access to and from this property off Doug Lane. 

Attorney Dillard stated that they will get all the necessary government 
improvements. They have spoken with EPD, DNR, US Fish and Wildlife, etc. to be in 
accordance with existing state and federal regulations. He added that they oppose 

the staff recommendations. Staff has recommended certain conditions that 
properties around them do not have. Attorney Dillard stated that he appreciates 

the staff recommending for approval, but they ask that it be approved without 
added conditions. He asked to reserve the remainder of his time.  
 

At this time, those who signed in to speak in favor of the rezoning request on Collis 
Road and Doug Lane, were given 3 minutes each to speak. 

 
Josh Sprayberry 
Kip Oldham 

Howard McMichael 
Lauren Sprayberry 

Walt C. Rocker III 
Brandon Burgess 
David Collis 

Jeff Haymore 
Cynthia Wallace 

 

42



At this time, those who signed in to speak in opposition of the rezoning request on 
Collis Road and Doug Lane, were given 3 minutes each to speak. 

 
Ron Ryland 

Denise Moore 
Steve Burgess 
Kristie McLeod 

Kathy Wardlaw 
Pete Wardlaw 

Debbie Wilcox 
Jeff McLeod 
Rex Bishop 

Carl Anderson 
John Culpepper 

 
Chairman Marshall asked Mr. Dillard why he felt that they should not be held to 
the conditions. Mr. Dillard stated that his clients are being imposed with conditions 

that are not imposed on other similarly situated properties. Chairman Marshall 
stated that this was an erroneous assumption. Josh Sprayberry stated that there 

were no conditions on Great Waters, Waterfront or Cuscowilla. He added that the 
zoning conditions on the RM-2 development at the end of the Collis Marina only has 

4 conditions. Mr. Sprayberry stated that the Ritz Carlton, a top tier hotel, is not 
constructed in that manner. He asked why they should be subject to something 
more stringent to that of the Ritz Carlton. He read lines from the staff 

recommendation comparing conditions to other developments that he felt was 
unfair. Chairman Marshall asked what the 21-acre tract would be used as. Mr. 

Sprayberry said that it will be used as green space. They don’t have any 
development plans. 
Kitty Burgess stated that because there is nothing shown on the 21 acres and as 

they look at the ordinance, it says that it must be shown on the plan. She added 
that if the county is not going to require that, why do they need zoning. Mrs. 

Burgess stated that the board should vote only on what is shown and come back 
to the 21-acre tract later.  
Mr. Haymore said that the concept plan met the requirements as stated in Putnam 

County Code of Ordinances Chapter 66-161(c).  
 

Staff recommendation is for approval of the proposed rezoning, subject to 
the following conditions: 
 

1. To restrict the available uses of the property as follows: 
a. Hotel 

i. The hotel shall substantial conform to the submitted 
scaled conceptual plans and renderings submitted in 

support of the proposed rezoning application, to 
include the buildings, ingress and egress 

improvements, and other structures; 

ii. No more than ten percent (10%) of the total number 
of guest rooms may contain stoves, conventional 

43



ovens or full-size refrigerators (larger than 11.5 cubic 
feet).  No more than ten percent (10%) of the total 

number of guest rooms shall be rented or leased by 
the same person for continuous periods in excess of 

ten (10) days; 

iii. Buildings shall be constructed of brick and/or stacked 
stone on all sides.  The hotel building may utilize 
contrasting architectural metal panels or accents; 

iv. Not to exceed the proposed total of 175 room as 
stated in the application. Any increase beyond this 

total will require approval from the Board of 
Commissioner; 

  
2. The application of green infrastructure (bioswales/biorention, 

etc) in combination of water quality retention ponds, will require 

implementation to minimize the negative effects of 
imperviousness and stormwater runoff to the water quality of 

Lake Oconee. The Georgia Stormwater Manual will be applied to 
the project under review. The manual’s water quality template will 
be used to assess the various water quality BMP options.  

  
3. Provide at least one 3-inch caliper tree per 3 parking spaces. 

Trees shall be placed in tree islands within the footprint of the 
parking lot. Location of trees shall be determined by the county 
during the site development review (LDP phase). Provide two – 3-

inch caliper trees per 100 feet on the shoulder of all roadways 
within the development. Trees to be placed on both sides of all 

internal roads. Specific location of the trees adjacent to the 
internal roads to be determined by the county during the site 

development review process. These tree plantings shall not 
preclude the developer from installing additional vegetation as 
he/she deems appropriate. 

  
4. Provide a 25-foot-wide densely planted landscape buffer along the 

property line on Doug Lane and where the property abuts 
residential parcels on Collis Marina Road. The additional plantings 
shall provide a 75% buffer within 3 years of planting. Landscape 

plan and species to be approved during the development review 
phase. 

  
5. Emergency exit required on Collis Marina Road. Emergency exit 

shall not be paved. “Grass Crete” or similar product shall be used 

as the surface treatment for this access. A removable bollard (s) 
or similar barrier shall be used with only emergency services 

being provided entryway   
  

44



6. Preserve a 20’ non-buildable strip along the Collis Road frontage 
measured from edge of right-of-way.  The purpose of this 

condition is for future county acquisition as right-of-way. 
  

7. A minimum of 65 feet building setback from Lake Oconee will be 
required. This includes all structures and stormwater management 
facilities. Walkways/paths and boat docks are excluded from this 

setback requirement.   
  

8. Development shall have only one (1) vehicular access. Access 
shall be from Collis Road. 

  

9. Map 104, parcel 030, map 104 parcel 032, map 104 parcel 
032001, map 104, parcel 033 and map 104 B, parcel 001, must be 

combined and cannot be used or sold as a standalone parcel.    
 

10. This rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and 

recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of the 
Putnam County Code of Ordinances.  

 
Motion to approve the request by Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee 

Overlook, LLC & Lick Creek Holding's LLC to rezone 2.14 acres on Collis Road 
from R-1 to RM-3, and by Howard McMichael, agent for Lick Creek Holding's 
LLC to rezone 21.40 acres on Collis Road from AG-1 to RM-3, and Howard 

McMichael, agent for Mallard's Overlook, LLC to rezone 29.58 acres on Collis 
Road from AG-1 to RM-3, and Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, 

LLC & Lick Creek Holding's LLC to rezone 3.5 acres on Collis Road from R-1 to 
RM-3, and Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC to rezone 0.63 
acres/27,298 sq. ft. on Doug Lane from R-1 to RM-3 with the following conditions:  

1. To restrict the available uses of the property as follows: 
a. Hotel 

i. The hotel shall substantial conform to the submitted scaled 
conceptual plans and renderings submitted in support of the 

proposed rezoning application, to include the buildings, 
ingress and egress improvements, and other structures; 

ii. No more than ten percent (10%) of the total number of 
guest rooms may contain stoves, conventional ovens or full-

size refrigerators (larger than 11.5 cubic feet).  No more 
than ten percent (10%) of the total number of guest rooms 

shall be rented or leased by the same person for continuous 
periods in excess of ten (10) days; 

iii. Buildings shall be constructed of brick and/or stacked stone 
on all sides.  The hotel building may utilize contrasting 

architectural metal panels or accents; 

iv. Not to exceed the proposed total of 175 room as stated in 
the application. Any increase beyond this total will require 
approval from the Board of Commissioner; 

  

45



2. The application of green infrastructure (bioswales/biorention, etc) in 
combination of water quality retention ponds, will require implementation 

to minimize the negative effects of imperviousness and stormwater runoff 
to the water quality of Lake Oconee. The Georgia Stormwater Manual will 

be applied to the project under review. The manual’s water quality 
template will be used to assess the various water quality BMP options.  

  

3. Provide at least one 3-inch caliper tree per 3 parking spaces. Trees shall 
be placed in tree islands within the footprint of the parking lot. Location of 

trees shall be determined by the county during the site development 
review (LDP phase). Provide two – 3-inch caliper trees per 100 feet on the 
shoulder of all roadways within the development. Trees to be placed on 

both sides of all internal roads. Specific location of the trees adjacent to 
the internal roads to be determined by the county during the site 

development review process. These tree plantings shall not preclude the 
developer from installing additional vegetation as he/she deems 
appropriate. 

  
4. Provide a 25-foot-wide densely planted landscape buffer along the 

property line on Doug Lane and where the property abuts residential 
parcels on Collis Marina Road. The additional plantings shall provide a 

75% buffer within 3 years of planting. Landscape plan and species to be 
approved during the development review phase. 

  

5. Emergency exit required on Collis Marina Road. Emergency exit shall not 
be paved. “Grass Crete” or similar product shall be used as the surface 

treatment for this access. A removable bollard (s) or similar barrier shall 
be used with only emergency services being provided entryway   

  

6. Preserve a 20’ non-buildable strip along the Collis Road frontage 
measured from edge of right-of-way.  The purpose of this condition is for 

future county acquisition as right-of-way. 
  

7. A minimum of 65 feet building setback from Lake Oconee will be required. 

This includes all structures and stormwater management facilities. 
Walkways/paths and boat docks are excluded from this setback 

requirement.   
  

8. Development shall have only one (1) vehicular access. Access shall be 

from Collis Road. 
  

9. Map 104, parcel 030, map 104 parcel 032, map 104 parcel 032001, map 
104, parcel 033 and map 104 B, parcel 001, must be combined and 
cannot be used or sold as a standalone parcel.    

 
10.This rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation 

of the plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of the Putnam County Code 
of Ordinances  

46



 
Made by Member Farley, Seconded by Chairman Marshall 

Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Member Farley 
Voting to Abstain: Member Hill (conflict of interest) 

 

47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



File Attachments for Item:

6. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Lick Creek Holding's LLC to rezone 21.40 acres on Collis 

Road from AG-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 032001, District 3] (staff-P&D)

169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



File Attachments for Item:

7. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Mallard's Overlook, LLC to rezone 29.58 acres on Collis 

Road from AG-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 032, District 3] (staff-P&D)

193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



File Attachments for Item:

8. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC & Lick Creek Holding's LLC to rezone 

3.5 acres on Collis Road from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 033, District 3] (staff-P&D)

217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



File Attachments for Item:

9. Request by Howard McMichael, agent for Oconee Overlook, LLC to rezone 0.63 acres/27,298 square 

feet on Doug Lane from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104B, Parcel 001, District 3] (staff-P&D)

246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



File Attachments for Item:

11. Consent Agenda

a. Approval of Minutes - June 5, 2020 Regular Meeting (staff-CC)

b. Approval of Minutes - June 5, 2020 Executive Session (staff-CC)

c. Approval of Minutes - June 5, 2020 Called Meeting (staff-CC)

d. Authorization for Chairman to sign ACCG Group Health Benefits Program Health Promotion & 

Wellbeing Grant Application (staff-HR)

271



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 1 of 4                                                                                     Approved 

June 5, 2020                                                                                                                                                              ______________ 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Friday, June 5, 2020 ◊ 9:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Friday, June 5, 2020 at approximately 9:00 

AM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, 

Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Kelvin Irvin 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Adam Nelson 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

 

Opening 

1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Webster called the meeting to order at approximately 9:02 a.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

2. Approval of Agenda 

Motion to approve the agenda with deletion of item #7 and addition of an Executive 

Session. 

Motion made by Commissioner Brown, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

 

3. Invocation - Dr. Ford G'Segner 

Dr. Ford G'Segner gave the invocation. 

 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (KI) 

Commissioner Irvin led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 

 

272



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 2 of 4                                                                                     Approved 

June 5, 2020                                                                                                                                                              ______________ 

Regular Business Meeting 

5. Public Comments 

None 

 

6. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - May 19, 2020 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - May 19, 2020 Executive Session (staff-CC) 

c. Approval of Minutes - May 29, 2020 Called Meeting (staff-CC) 

d. Approval of 2020 Alcohol License - New Ownership (Parham's Place formerly Robert's 

Night Club) (staff-CC) 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

(Copy of license made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

7. Discussion with Greg Gease from ACCG regarding 457 Plan Benefits (staff-CM) 

This item was removed from the agenda. 

 

8. Authorization for Chairman to sign Georgia Indigent Defense Services Agreement (staff-

Finance) 

Circuit Public Defender Mr. John Bradley spoke in support of this item and answered questions. 

Motion to authorize the Chairman to sign the Georgia Indigent Defense Services 

Agreement as shown in the meeting package. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

(Copy of agreement made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

9. Appointment to the Oconee Community Service Board (staff-CC) 

Commissioner Irvin, seconded by Commissioner Brown, nominated Felicia Harrison-Hill for 

appointment to the Oconee Community Service Board. 

Chairman Webster called for the vote.  Commissioner Irvin voted for Felicia Harrison-Hill.  

Commissioner Brown voted for Felicia Harrison-Hill.  Commissioner Sharp voted for 

Felicia Harrison-Hill. 

 

10. Approval of Corporate Health Partners Client Services Agreement-Third Extended Service 

Term (staff-CM) 

County Manager Van Haute explained the item and answered questions. 

Motion to approve the Corporate Health Partners Client Services Agreement-Third 

Extended Service Term. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

(Copy of agreement made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

273



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 3 of 4                                                                                     Approved 

June 5, 2020                                                                                                                                                              ______________ 

11. Approval of Second Purchase of Triple Combination Pumper under Solicitation 20-35001-

001 (staff-CM/Fire) 

Chief McClain requested to purchase a second Pumper truck under the same solicitation as the 

one from a few weeks ago.  He explained that this purchase will be paid for using SPLOST 9 

funds. 

Motion to approve the purchase of a second Triple Combination Pumper under 

Solicitation 20-35001-001 at the cost of $498,800 from Ten-8 Fire & Safety. 

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

 

12. Discussion and possible action on Construction Management Agreement and Plans for the 

Relocation of Offices for Board of Elections & Registration (staff-CM) 

County Manager Van Haute explained the request and answered questions. 

Motion for the County Manager to bring back a plan for the outside portion of the plans, 

including the road and parking lot. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

 

Reports/Announcements 

13. County Manager Report 

County Manager Van Haute reported the following: 

• Public Works is clipping shoulders and preparing 125 miles for the Off-System Safety 

grant.  This is a major clean up and the roadways are looking good. 

• Thanks to the Fire/EMS/Public safety personnel for great efforts last night for some 

behind the scenes work. 

• Temporary striping is in place at the Recreation Department. 

• Oconee Springs Park had great Memorial Day weekend and the week 

following.  Everything is looking good there and thanks for the support. 

• Everybody has been working well through this pandemic. 

 

14. County Attorney Report 

No report, but commended Lisa Jackson, Lynn Butterworth, Paul Van Haute and other 

employees for a well put together public hearing last night. 

 

15. Commissioner Announcements 

Commissioner Irvin: none 

 

Commissioner Brown: none 

 

Commissioner Sharp: none 

 

Chairman Webster: none 

 

 

 

274



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 4 of 4                                                                                     Approved 

June 5, 2020                                                                                                                                                              ______________ 

16. Enter Executive Session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4 for Personnel, Litigation, or Real 

Estate 

Motion to enter Executive Session for litigation purposes. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

 

 

Meeting closed at approximately 9:46 a.m. 

 

 

17. Reopen meeting and execute Affidavit concerning the subject matter of the closed portion of 

the meeting 

Motion to reopen the meeting and execute the Affidavit concerning the subject matter of 

the closed portion of the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

 

 

Meeting reopened at approximately 11:08 a.m. 

 

 

18. Action, if any, resulting from the Executive Session 

No action was taken. 

Closing 

19. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 11:09 a.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Billy Webster 

County Clerk       Chairman 

275



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

Office of the County Clerk 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 (main office) ◊ 706-485-1877 (direct line) ◊ 706-923-2345 (fax) 

lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 

 

 

 

 

The draft minutes of the June 5, 2020 Executive Session 

are available for Commissioner review in the Clerk’s 

office. 
 

276

mailto:lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us
http://www.putnamcountyga.us/


DRAFT Called Meeting Minutes                                   Page 1 of 2                                                                                     Approved 

June 5, 2020                                                                                                                                                                  ____________ 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Called Meeting 

Minutes 

Friday, June 5, 2020 ◊ 10:30 AM* 

(*approximate time-Called Meeting will follow Regular Meeting) 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Friday, June 5, 2020 at approximately 

11:16 AM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, 

Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Kelvin Irvin 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Adam Nelson 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

 

Opening 

1. Call to Order 

Chairman Webster called the meeting to order at approximately 11:16 a.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

Called Meeting 
2. Comprehensive Plan Review/Implementation (MGRC) 

Susan Landfried from the Middle Georgia Regional Commission gave a comprehensive plan 

requirements overview.  She distributed copies of the Joint Comprehensive Plan and a regional 

vision.  She discussed the plan status and recertification deadlines.  She also gave a Community 

Work Program review including a review of current implementation activities, a discussion of 

new activities and initiatives, and a discussion of plan use/relevance.  She concluded with a 

Regional Plan overview.  No action was taken. 

(Copy of documents made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

 

277



DRAFT Called Meeting Minutes                                   Page 2 of 2                                                                                     Approved 

June 5, 2020                                                                                                                                                                  ____________ 

Closing 

3. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 11:42 a.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Billy Webster 

County Clerk       Chairman 

278



279


	Top
	1.	2020-06-16 BOC Welcome
	COVID 19 Protocol

	2.	2020-06-18 BOC Agenda Approval
	4.	2020-06-18 BOC Pledge
	6.	2020-06-18 BOC Rezoning McMichael 2
	6.Collis Application 104032001-pages-40-62-rotated

	7.	2020-06-16 BOC Rezoning McMichael 3
	7.Collis Application 104032-pages-40-62-rotated

	8.	2020-06-18 BOC Rezoning McMichael 4
	8.Collis Application 104033-pages-40-67-rotated

	9.	2020-06-18 BOC Rezoning McMichael 5
	9.Collis Application 104B001-pages-40-63-rotated

	10.	2020-06-18 BOC Public Comments
	11.	2020-06-18 BOC Consent Agenda
	DRAFT 06-05-20 BOC Minutes
	Executive Session Minutes Agenda Item
	DRAFT 06-05-20 BOC Called Meeting Minutes
	ACCG-GHBP Grant Application

	12.	2020-06-18 BOC CM Report
	13.	2020-06-18 BOC CA Report
	14.	2020-06-18 BOC Comm Announcements
	15.	2020-06-18 BOC Adjourn
	Bottom

